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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The original 2 1/2 story, four room house with hall and stairway, has mostly
6 over 6 sash, some 6 over 9, some 4 over 4 panned windows, nine inch clapboard
siding, and two fireplaces. The living room fireplace has a good Adamesque mantel
with center sunburst. In the attic is a smoke house in the first constructed
chimney.

Later there was a need for an addition which is also two stories. This section
contains eight rooms, four on the first floor, four on the second floor. The
fireplace in the keeping room has the original crane. The kitchen fireplace is
back to back with the one in the keeping room and the same chimney services both.
One of the  few alterations in the’ dériginal structuré was -the- division' of the
borning room into two bathrooms, one to service the family in the original section
and one to service the family in the addition. These sections have been rented
since the 1930's.

The basement has the original dirt floor with the original fireplace in the
older section.

A one story clapboard store was added in the early 1900's. It measures 14'3"
by 23'7". It is presently used for storage and has not been utilitized as a
store since the 1930's.

The house is similar to others in the Union County area, notably the Miller-
Cory house in Westfield (National and State Register - 1972). Without pretentions
of great style, closely hugging the ground, they share the common characteristics
of high-end chimneys, stepped-down roofs, small-paned windows and sheltering
porch. )
[ N C e e . e , /
The Woodruff House has three major sections of construction--an 18th century 2
story 3 bay ‘unit; a1l 1/2 story 3 bay wing on the gablé end, and a one story
flat-roofed frame structure added to the front around 1900 and used as a small

general “store. o

The earliest section, built sometime in the 18th century, has a 3 bay, side hall
form. Two stories in height, this frame unit has fenestration only on the first
floor level and a high knee-wall extending to the eaves. This is a characteristic
New Jersey form, the gable end providing light to the second floor level. The
chimney is on the gable end. The windows ‘aré 6/6 sash with louvered shutters in
the front, but there is a 6/9 sash in the rear facade of this section.

The foundation is random fieldstone. Entrance to the earliest section is made via
a side doorway protected by a small 20th century classical portico. Thé door opens
to a through hall with a stairway against the outside wall. On the other side of
the hall are two large rooms, front and back. The rear room is slightly smaller
than the front. 1In the front room the fireplace is flat against the outside wall
and the mantle is a late 18th century design. The central ellipse, engaged collen-
ettes, and broken shelf give off Adamesque characteristics. The rear room has a
corner fireplace, but the mantel is very simple with little detailing. Floorboards
throughout this section are approximately 14" wide. Construction details in the
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attic - 3 1/2 feet between rafters, mortise and tenon pegging, and the lack of a
ridge pole - all suggest an 18th century erection date, but the vertical sawn

rafters tend to contradict this.

The 1 1/2 story frame wing with stone foundation off the gable end is thought
to be a later addition, but probably was constructed before the second quarter
of the 19th century. This unit has four apertures on the first floor front
facade and three on the second floor. The first floor windows are 6/6 sash.
The upper floor windows at the eaves are knee-wall 3 pane windows. The gable
end has two full 6/6 sash. Shutters are louvered. Across the front is a one
story porch. The rear has a projecting modern bay. This unit has a central
tapering chimney. There are four rooms per floor in this section, but only
the front rooms have a fireplace.

Projecting out of the end bay of this section is a one story frame structure
built around 1900 as a commercial facility for the next thirty years. This
early 20th century addition has a large glass storefront facade (boarded up)
and a flat roof. : .

=
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The property is in a primarily residential neighborhood.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built sometime before the Revolution, the Woodruff House is the best preserved
colonial building in Hillside..and.is a representative example of the farmhouses
which dotted the New Jersey 1andscape in the 18th century.

of Engllsh ancestry, the Woodruff family acquired huge tracts of land near
Elizabethtown in the late 17th century. The land was gradually divided into
smaller farmsteads as the family increased. The property of 113 Conant Street
was part of that huge tract of land and while there is little historical docu-
mentation to positively establish the date of erection of the house, the con-
struction details confirm an 18th century date.

The last Woodruff family to occupy the house was Charles T. Woodruff and his
wife, Theresa Coyne Woodruff. Four sons were born to this couple, Charles Grumman
Woodruff, George Coyne Woodruff, author of the History of Hillside and Vicinity,
1934, Ezra F. Woodruff and Timothy Winslow Woodruff, only survivor and present
owner.. .. .. ... . . iy C

Charles T. Woodruff, last of the family to actively farm this land, specialized in
extensive orchards, both apples and peaches. As his forebearers, he continued to
produce cider and vinegar on a site near the original cider mill that had stood on
adjacent land. He was an.active member of the New Jersey Horticulture.Society.
Charles T. Woodruff and his four sons gradually sub-divided the land into building
lots for construction of homes during the 1920's. The original house now.stands.on
a Tot 94' x 150' remnant of the original land grant.

Commerce
At the turn of the 20th century, Charles Woodruff added a small general store
onto the front of the farmhouse. . While the family probably always sold their

own products locally, the construction of a small store to do so indicates a
change from farmer/merchant to merchant/farmer.

Politics/Government

Operating from around 1900 to 1930, the Woodruff store provided for a myriad
of political and community services.

Due to the centrallzed locatlon and easy acces31b111ty, the store (added in
the late 1800's) functioned not merely as a general store but for govermmental
activities and a myriad of functions ranging from tax collection center, where
Mr. David Doremus, Union Tax Collector, would collect the taxes. The store
also held Election Board Meetings, served as meeting place where the plans for
incorporation of Township of Hillside were made, Volunteer Fire Department meetings

-
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